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Reviews

WALTER RAUNIG — PRINZ ASFA-WOSSEN ASSERATE (Hrsg.), Orbis
Aethiopicus @-CO hACKEL Beitrige zur Geschichte, Religion und
Kunst Athiopiens, Band XIII: Juden, Christen und Muslime in Athio-
pien — ein Beispiel fiir abrabhamische Okumene. Beitrdge der Jahres-
tagung 2008 in Pinneberg, Dettelbach: Verlag J.H. Roll, 2010.
191 pp., 116 colour pls. Price: € 79.—. ISBN: 978-3-89754-354—6.

The present volume of the “Orbis Aethiopicus” Society Proceedings for the
2008 annual meeting opens with the obituary by Angela Raabe (pp. 7-9) for
Peter Roenpage (1924-2008). Roenpage was one of the founders of “Orbis
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Aethiopicus” (in 1994), since 1959 worked as a teacher in Ethiopia at the
School of Fine Arts at Addis Ababa, a benefactor for a long time. He was
especially known as the inventor of the popular motto of Ethiopia as the “13
months of sunshine” country. The volume bears the subtitle “Jews, Christians
and Muslims in Ethiopia”, which, as it will appear, is only to a certain point
justified by the contents, as only few of the contributions actually focus on
the topics.

Rudolf Agstner’s “The Foreigner’s Cemeteries in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia”
(pp- 11-44) is a careful presentation with first-hand data on the neglected “Eu-
ropean cemetery”,! also known as “Petros wiaPawlos”, from the name of the
Catholic cemetery “San Pietro e Paolo”. Founded in 1912, it was significantly
expanded in the period of the Italian occupation and of World War IT (1936~
1941), when an Italian Military Cemetery and a Commonwealth War Graves
Cemetery Military were added. It also includes an International Cemetery, a
New and an Old Armenian Cemetery, and a Greek Orthodox St. George
Cemetery. Information on other cemeteries is also provided, such as on the
Cemetery of the Holy Trinity Cathedral, on the British Embassy Cemetery
and on the Jewish Cemetery. The author’s care for details is to be highly com-
mended, while it is regrettable that so many errors occur in the transcription of
Italian words. The author later developed the theme in a monograph.?

Bairu Tafla’s “Between Religion and Politics. Reflecting on the Agelong
Religious Policy of Imperial Ethiopia” (pp. 45-56) is a stimulating memento
that once more discusses the taken-for-granted conclusions on the assumed
paradigm of religious intolerance (or even of religious tolerance!) in Ethio-
pia. It is a reasonable invitation to distinguish ideology and economic and
social reality in interreligious relationships throughout Ethiopian history,
and as represented in the sources which document it, both in the last two
centuries as well as in the more remote past.

Gabriele Berrer-Wallbrecht’s “Die Mystik des Islam. Der Sufismus als
Frieden stiftendes Element im Islam” (pp. 57-78) unexpectedly appears in
this volume, no particular reference is made here to Ethiopian Sufism as
such, whereas a general and didascalic presentation of Sufism as a general
phenomenon is provided.

Stanislaw Chojnacki’s “The history of the Sacred Heart in Ethiopia”
(pp- 79-100) gives an interesting and so far unattempted insight into attesta-

1 With the exception of the Guida dell’Africa Orientale Italiana, Roma: Consociazione
Turistica Italiana, 1938, p. 486.

2 R. AGSTNER, One week in Ethiopia, forever with God. Guidebook to the Foreigners’
Cemeteries in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia = Kulturwissenschaft 25, Berlin — Miinster: LIT Ver-
lag, 2009, already reviewed by A. MULLER in Aethiopica 14,2011 [2012], pp. 301-304.
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tion and diffusion of the Sacred Heart motif in Ethiopian Orthodox churches,
but also in private devotion and common spaces of social life. Originated in
the 17 century Europe and introduced to the country by Catholic missionar-
ies around the turn of the 19%/20™ century, the image of the Sacred Heart is
traditionally known in popular prints (recently from China), and much less in
traditional paintings. It is known under the name of Mddpane “alim ‘Saviour
of the World’, or [Ya]Labb Iyisus ‘Jesus of the Heart’ (so better than ‘Heart
of Jesus’). Two main typologies can be singled out, while even a secondary
typology with Jesus in the usual attire, yet with no heart, is also attested. The
subject of the Sacred Heart appears to be a typical product of Western influ-
ence, with actually no connection to older similar motifs, such as the famous
“Ancient of Days”. What Chojnacki could have also mentioned is that the
troops of the Italian invaders were solemnly vowed to the Sacred Heart in
May 1936, which for sure had consequences on the diffusion of cult and devo-
tional images of the latter.?

Annegret Marx and Friedrich Dworschak’s “Die illuminierte Handschrift
Ms. or. 18 aus dem Nachlass von Eduard Riippell. Dokumentation und Pri-
sentation einer athiopischen Handschrift mit modernen Medien und kleinen
Mitteln” (pp. 101-111) is occasioned by the digitization under the care of the
University of Frankfurt of two Ethiopian manuscripts from the Eduard Riip-
pell collection, Mss. or. Riipp. IV, 1 and 1V, 2. The latter in particular (now
apparently preserved under the new shelfmark Ms. or. 18, which is not clear
enough in the contribution) is an interesting small-size illuminated manuscript
of the period of Fasilidds (1632-1667)* that has been made the subject of a
DVD-film produced on the occasion of the exhibition “Steh auf und geh nach
Siiden! Arise and go toward the South. 2000 Jahre Christentum in Athiopien /
2000 years of Christianity in Ethiopia”,® held in Frankfurt from November
2007 to March 2008. The paper provides the text of the film, with the detailed

3 Cf. the essay by M. FRANZINELLI, “Il clero italiano e la grande mobilitazione”, in: R.
BOTTONI (a c.), L’impero fascista, Bologna: Societa editrice il Mulino, 2008, pp. 251—
265, esp. p. 254, and in the same volume that by E. NOBILI, “Vescovi lombardi e con-
senso alla guerra”, pp. 268-284, esp. p. 279; on the theme see also D. MENOZZI, Sacro
cuore. Un culto tra devozione interiore e restaurazione cristiana della societa = Sacro/
Santo 5, Roma: Viella, 2001.

4 Cf. L. GOLDSCHMIDT, Die abessinischen Handschriften der Stadtbibliothek zu Frank-

furt am Main (Riippel’sche Sammlung) nebst Anhingen und Ausziigen, Berlin: S. Cal-

vary & Co., 1897, pp. 57-58 (no. 14); also in E. HAMMERSCHMIDT — O.A. JAGER, [I-

luminierte Athiopische Handschriften = Verzeichnis der Orientalischen Handschriften

in Deutschland 15, Wiesbaden: Franz Steiner Verlag GMBH, 1968, pp. 56—64.

Also the name of the related exhibition catalogue, Frankfurt am Main: Ikonen-

Museum der Stadt Frankfurt, 2007.
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description of the paintings, origin and history of the Riippell manuscript
collection, and the latter’s journeys to Ethiopia.

Christiane Esche-Ramshorn, ““Instruire ne la catholica fede’. Athiopier in
der Kunst des 15. Jahrhunderts in Rom und Florenz, die dthiopische Pilgerkir-
che an Alt St. Peter und Athiopiens Verhiltnis zum Vatikan” (pp. 113-133) is a
tentative overview presentation of Ethio-European relationships in the early
Renaissance, with special focus on the role Rome and the Vatican have played.
Unfortunately, not in few cases the bibliography used is largely outdated - e.g.,
EAE is never used — which has caused major inconveniences in several crucial
questions, such as the confusion between Ethiopians and Indians, the history
of Santo Stefano dei Mori in the Vatican etc. Despite this, the author has pro-
vided some interesting evidence on early portrayed Ethiopians in Renaissance
art, in particular — basing on Francescio Maria Turrigio and Francesco Cancel-
lieri — a lost painting in a “tramezzo” of the Church of Santo Stefano Maggiore,
representing the Trinity with St. Stephen, a Dominican father described in a
caption in Ethiopic characters (!) as “Frat. Antonio Abessino”, probably to be
identified with a member of the 1481 Ethiopian delegation.®

Walter Kraft’s one-page contribution “Der Lowe von Ancharro bei
Kombolcha/Wollo” (pp. 134-137 incl. figs.) is devoted to attract attention
again to the rock sculpted lion (earlier interpreted as a sphynx) in the near-
by of Kombol¢a and probably dating to Aksumite times.

Dorothea McEwan, “Sebetat, ein ithiopisches Ungeheuer” (pp. 139-160)
deals with the motif in a drawing by painter Eduard Zander (1813-1868, in
Ethiopia from 1847 to his death), now lost and preserved only in a glass
negative from Dessau, Sammlung Anhaltische Gemaildegalerie. According to
Zander’s own caption, the drawing portraits a monstruous half-lion and half-
man creature with a twofold tail ending in two snakes, and armed with bow
and arrow, and who was eventually killed by the bull “Meskitt”, whose horns
were one of silver and the other of gold. The motif was copied in 1855 from a
wooden sculpted door in the Lalibala church at Gondir that was eventually
destroyed in the 1880s during the invasion of the Mahdist troops. Zander
names it “Sebetat”, i.e. Go%z sobdda’at, a ‘spirit of the water’, or sabadda‘at
(and similar forms), “viper” as a mythological animal, i.e. 2 monstruous ani-
mal. The author traces the motif in the paintings inspired by the hagiographic
narrative of the equestrian saints Claudius, Theodor, and Victor, or by the
Nigdrd Maryam, and investigates related sources and questions.

6 On this latter and its further reflexes in Renaissance paintings cf. M. BONECHI, “Four
Sistine Ethiopians”, Aethiopica 14, 2011 [2012], pp. 121-135, and the note by G. FIAC-
CADORI, “A Marginal Note to ‘Four Sistine Ethiopians?’”, tbid., pp. 136-144.
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Steffen Wenig, “Eine archdologische Studienreise nach Wugqro in Tigray/
Athiopien im Mirz 2008” (pp. 161-177) provides a synthetic but impressive
report of the recent extraordinary archaeological findings in the nearby of
Woqro. The excavations — since november 2007 by Tigray Cultural and
Tourism Commission, then, after a prehmmary survey in March 2008 by
Wenig himself for the Orbis Aethiopicus soc1ety, since June 2008 also by
the Deutsches Archiologisches Institut, at work since October 2008 under
direction of Dr. Pawel Wolf — have revealed a complex and rich, previously
unknown South Arabian settlement dating to about 7% cent. B.C., docu-
menting a temple, inscriptions and several monumental findings. Other so
far unexplored sites — such as “Menebeiti” (probably Manibayti) in the
nearby of ‘Addigrat — are also dealt with.

Wolbert G.C. Smidt’s “Another unknown Arabic inscription from the
eastern Tigrayan trade route” (pp. 179-191), as the author informs, is the Eng-
lish version of an article in German already published in Aethiopica.” The
article is devoted to the interpretation of a fragmentary Arabic Islamic inscrip-
tion consisting of one and two half words (-k *Imlk °I-) preserved at Waqro in
the church entitled to Qirqos, Maryam, Mika’el and Gabro’el. The well-
known Islamic settlement in the nearby of Waqro, at Nagas (10 km to the
north), can be but very problematically related to this fragment which seems
to be out of context in the area, to the extent that, in my opinion, a foreign
origin can not be excluded. (The author, pp. 128f., n. 22, indulges on remarks
on the local pronunciation of Tigrinya “Corqos” as “Cirqos” corresponding
to Ga%az “Qirqos”, sallot for salot, gone mahlit for gone mablet [of course, in
the traditional pronunciation mahlet!], which should actually be considered
from the point of view of their phonemic or phonetic relevance, since the
author seems to disclaim the real nature of the transcriptions used — after EAE
— which is essentially phonemic, not phonetic.)

As it happens for miscellaneous proceedings volumes, consistency of
transcriptions and bibliographical references is not to be expected. In this
case, however, many of the articles are very stimulating and, last not least,
accompanied by wondertful illustrative material — 116 colour figures appear,
distributed in some 51 pages of tables only — which is definitely one of the
most appreciated features of this volume.

Alessandro Bausi, Universitit Hamburg

7 Le. “Eine weitere arabische Inschrift von der osttigrayischen Handelsroute: Hinweis auf
eine muslimische Kultstitte in der ‘dunklen Periode’?”, Aethiopica 12, 2009, pp. 126-135.
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